
 

 
 

 

AGENDA 
 

EXTRAORDINARY SHEPPEY AREA COMMITTEE 
MEETING 
 
Date: Tuesday, 8 February 2022 
Time:  6.30 pm 
Venue: Sheerness Working Men’s Club, 47 Queenborough Road, Minster-on-Sea, 
Sheerness, ME12 3BZ 

 
Membership: 
 
Councillors Cameron Beart (Vice-Chairman), Richard Darby, Oliver Eakin, Simon Fowle, 
Angela Harrison, Ken Ingleton (Chairman), Elliott Jayes, Peter Macdonald, 
Peter Marchington, Lee McCall, Pete Neal, Padmini Nissanga, Ken Pugh and Bill Tatton. 
 
Quorum = 5. 
  
RECORDING NOTICE 
 
Please note: this meeting may be recorded and the recording may be published on the 
Council’s website. 
 
At the start of the meeting the Chairman will confirm if all or part of the meeting is being 
audio recorded.  The whole of the meeting will be recorded, except where there are 
confidential or exempt items. 
 
You should be aware that the Council is a Data Controller under the Data Protection Act.  
Data collected during this recording will be retained in accordance with the Council’s data 
retention policy. 
 
Therefore by attending the meeting and speaking at Committee you are consenting to being 
recorded and to the possible use of those sound recordings for training purposes. 
 
If you have any queries regarding this please contact Democratic Services. 
 

 
  Pages 

Information for the Public 
Members of the press and public can listen to this meeting live. Details of how to 
join the meeting will be added to the website on 7 February 2022.  
 
Link to meeting: TO BE ADDED 
 

 

Privacy Statement 
Swale Borough Council (SBC) is committed to protecting the privacy and 
security of your personal information. As data controller we ensure that 

 

Public Document Pack



 

 

processing is carried out in accordance with the Data Protection Act 2018 
and the General Data Protection Regulations. In calling to join the meeting 
your telephone number may be viewed solely by those Members and 
Officers in attendance at the Microsoft Teams meeting and will not be 
shared further. No other identifying information will be made available 
through your joining to the meeting. In joining the meeting you are 
providing the Council with your consent to process your telephone 
number for the duration of the meeting. Your telephone number will not be 
retained after the meeting is finished. If you have any concerns or 
questions about how we look after your personal information or your 
rights as an individual under the Regulations, please contact the Data 
Protection Officer by email at dataprotectionofficer@swale.gov.uk or by 
calling 01795 417179. 
 
1.  Emergency evacuation procedure 

 
The Chair will advise the meeting of the evacuation procedures to follow 
in the event of an emergency. This is particularly important for visitors and 
members of the public who will be unfamiliar with the building and 
procedures. The Chair will inform the meeting that: there is no scheduled 
test of the fire alarm during this meeting. If the alarm does sound, please 
leave the building quickly without collecting any of your possessions, 
using the doors signed as fire escapes, and assemble outside where 
directed. Await instructions before re-entering the building. Should 
anyone require assistance in evacuating the building, please make the 
Swale Borough Council officers aware of any special needs so that 
suitable arrangements may be made in the event of an emergency. 
  

 

2.  Apologies for absence 
 

 

3.  Declarations of interest 
 

 

4.  Swale Borough Council's Levelling-Up Fund Bid 
 

3 - 32 

5.  Any other business 
 

 

 

Issued on Monday, 31 January 2022 
 
 

 
The reports included in Part I of this agenda can be made available in 
alternative formats. For further information about this service, or to arrange 
for special facilities to be provided at the meeting, please contact 
DEMOCRATIC SERVICES on 01795 417330. To find out more about the work 
of the Area Committees, please visit www.swale.gov.uk 

 
 

 
Chief Executive, Swale Borough Council, 

Swale House, East Street, Sittingbourne, Kent, ME10 3HT 

mailto:dataprotectionofficer@swale.gov.uk


Extraordinary Sheppey Area Committee  

08 February 2022, 6.30pm – 8.00pm, Sheerness East Working Men’s Club and 

via MS Teams 

 

Levelling-Up Fund – Introduction and Consultation 

 

1. Purpose of this Report 
 

1.1. Meeting attendees are invited to comment on the developing Levelling-Up 
Fund proposals as set in this report and the appended Consultation Pack. 
Specific areas of focus for comment are suggested in section 4.4. 
 

2. Background – Levelling-Up Fund 
 

2.1. The Levelling-Up Fund is a UK-wide £4.8bn infrastructure fund. 
 

2.2. Local Authorities are categorised into three bands according to need for:  

• economic recovery and growth 

• improved transport connectivity 

• regeneration 
  

Swale has the highest priority status. This means Swale Borough Council has 
been allocated £125,000 capacity funding to develop a bid. These funds were 
received in October 2021. 
 

2.3. Bids can be for up to £20m LUF investment, and match funding of at least 10% 
of the project value is strongly encouraged.  
 

2.4. Delivery of LUF projects must conclude by March 2025.  
 

2.5. Government has yet to confirm the submission and assessment deadlines for 
round 2 beyond announcing that the round will open in the spring.  For the 
purposes of project planning, officers are assuming the fund will be launched 
on 1 March with bids expected by 15 April 2022. 

 
3. Background – Swale project development 

 
3.1. Swale’s Levelling-Up Fund bid has been discussed on a number of occasions 

with a range of ideas proposed for consideration. Officers and members 
reviewed the potential project ideas with a view to compatibility with the 
Levelling-Up Fund’s priority themes and delivery parameters. 
 

3.2. The “Sheerness Revival” scheme (working title) is considered to offer the 
optimum fit with local need and the fund’s priorities. It has a particular 
advantage that Swale Borough Council own and control the majority of land 
which will undergo change and has strong relationships with stakeholders – 
so the project can be delivered at pace.  

 

Page 3

Agenda Item 4



3.3. The project is targeting a wide range of outcomes, including improvements in 
health and wellbeing, education and skills, employment opportunities, 
community benefits, environmental enhancements and connectivity. The 
project has an overarching theme of placemaking, and three built elements: 
 

• Placemaking. An overarching objective is connectivity between the 
sites targeted for investment, the High Street / town centre and the waterfront, 
bringing wider benefits for Sheppey, and delivering on its economic, skills, 
leisure and visitor economy potential. This could include environmental and 
landscape improvements which could also help address anti-social behaviour.  

 

• Beachfields. This project centres on the opportunity presented by the 
possible demolition of the ageing indoor swimming pool complex and its 
relocation adjacent to the dry side leisure centre.  The pool is nearing the end 
of its economic lifespan, and there are financial and environmental 
advantages to having both facilities co-located. The relocation will be 
accompanied by the introduction of additional leisure and commercial 
opportunities, which may include - subject to feasibility studies and 
consultation responses – attractions such adventure golf, a bowling alley, 
outdoor five-a-side football pitches, and the conversion of the paddling pool to 
a splash pad. The opportunity to offer additional health facilities within the new 
footprint is being progressed. This could be a key feature of the new building 
and its community offer. 

 

• Sheppey College Expansion. The Council-owned car park adjacent to 
Sheppey College is under-utilised and presents an opportunity for the College 
to expand and extend vocational provision, improving skills and education 
across Sheppey. The land value of the car park would represent a match 
funding contribution from Swale Borough Council.  

 

• Master’s House. The conversion of the workshop area to the rear of 
Master’s House to studio workspace would complete the Master’s House 
restoration scheme and secure a role for the House at the heart of the town 
centre and its employment offer, offering jobs and training opportunities. The 
Council’s investment in Master’s House in 22/23 will represent match funding.  

 
3.3. The inclusion of each of these elements is subject to consultation, overall 

budget, and - where appropriate – formal endorsement of external partners.  
 

4. Consultation 
 
4.1. Consultation is a very important part of project development and bid success 

and Swale Borough Council are keen to hear from all interested members of 
the community.   
  

4.2. Online consultation opened on 4 February and will be live until 25 February.  
 

4.3. Consultation has been supported by press releases, direct invitations and a 
short social media campaign. 

 

Page 4



4.4. Consultation questions focus on areas that will help the bid develop. We are 
seeking views in response to the following four questions:  

• What would you like to see inside the new swimming pool building / 
refurbished leisure centre? 

• What would you like to see in the wider Beachfields footprint? 

• The proposed extension of Sheppey College could create new courses in 
engineering and creative industries, and a Junior College for 14-16 year 
olds to study technical and vocational subjects. Are there any other 
industry sectors and types of courses that could be considered? 

• How can the projects benefit the town centre, waterfront and beyond? 
 
5. Appendices 

 
5.1. Sheerness Revival – Consultation Pack February 2022. 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Levelling-Up Fund
Consultation Pack – February 2022

P
age 7



What is Levelling-Up?

• Levelling-up is a concept introduced by central government in 2019

• It is about reducing inequality between places

• Greater detail has been expected for some time, and levelling-up policy is 
due to be set out by government early in 2022

• Levelling-up covers things like improvements in skills, health, employment 
and housing

• Government want levelling-up to lead to visible change – and this is the 
reason for the creation of the Levelling-Up Fund 

P
age 8



What is the Levelling-Up Fund?

• The Levelling-Up Fund (LUF) is a £4.8bn UK-wide infrastructure fund

• Infrastructure means building and improving things such as roads, workspaces, parks and health facilities

• Bids can only be submitted by local government 

• Round 1 (2021) asked projects to reflect one or all of three themes, and we expect round 2 to be the same. These themes are:
• Transport
• Regeneration and town centres
• Culture

• Bids can be for up to £20m of LUF money

• Local authorities are strongly recommended to contribute at least 10% of the value of the project from their own funds (this is 
known as ‘match’ funding).

P
age 9



What does priority status mean?

• Central government has given each area a priority category based on need for 
investment. There are three priority categories and Swale is in band 1 –
meaning it is one of the areas in greatest need

• Band 1 areas received £125,000 to work up bids (this was only available for 
round 2 projects – the money was received in October 2021)

• Band 1 status means our bid will be given a ‘weighted’ score when it’s assessed 
by government – so if we were to submit an identical bid to a band 2 or 3 area, 
our final score would be higher

• Around 5 out of every 12 band 1 bids were awarded money in round 1. 

P
age 10



What can we bid for?

• Because LUF is for infrastructure, projects 
which would need ongoing investment are 
not eligible – so we can’t ask for money for 
things like training programmes or subsidised 
bus routes

• Bids must be able to be fully delivered by 
March 2025

• Bids can include up to three related projects 
(this is called a ‘package bid’) - but no more.

P
age 11



How are bids assessed?

• Central government want bids to demonstrate
• Strategic fit – projects which match local, regional and national priorities and which respond to an obvious need
• Value for money – government look for projects to deliver at least twice as much in terms of benefits as they 

require in cost. (This is called a ‘benefit-cost ratio’ or BCR)
• Deliverability – projects must be realistic. This includes capable of being delivered to time; very likely to receive 

planning permission (if needed); have the full consent of landowners

• Each of these areas receives a score

• Band 1 bids are awarded extra marks because of their priority status

• MP support makes a positive contribution, with each MP allowed to formally back one bid within their constituency

• Letters of support are also taken in to consideration

P
age 12



What are the timescales?

• So far, we don’t know when round 2 will open beyond ‘the spring’

• We are working to an earliest possible deadline of round 2 opening on 1 
March and closing on 15 April. This should mean we are not taken by 
surprise when the call for projects is launched and the bid submission 
deadline is announced.

• Round 1 funding awards were announced 4 months after the submission 
deadline, so we might expect to hear from September onwards 

• All of these dates are assumptions 

• As bids must be delivered by 31 March 2025 (this date appears fixed) we 
will plan to start delivering from October 2022 onwards if successful

P
age 13



Who have we spoken with so far?

• Swale Borough Council’s Cabinet Advisory Committee met last summer and 
developed a short list of project ideas. Many of these built on previous 
consultation with Sheerness residents 

• Councillors and officers discussed the pros and cons of each idea, with a 
particular eye on how they match what central government are looking for

• In 2021 Councillors confirmed that Swale’s Levelling-Up Fund bid will focus 
on Sheerness

• Since then, we have spoken again with Cabinet Advisory Committee, with 
leaseholders, ward members, Gordon Henderson MP, and EKC Group.

P
age 14



What are the ideas?

• Our emerging project focuses on Sheerness, as the area has 
the greatest levels of inequality within the borough

• It seeks to achieve benefits in terms of economy, education 
and skills, leisure, health and wellbeing

• There are four main ideas
• Connectivity  - between the sea front and High Street, 

and the following areas which the bid would improve:
• Beachfields
• Sheppey College
• Master’s House

• It has been given the working title ‘Sheerness Revival’

• An aerial view can be seen on the next page highlighting key 
areas for the bid

P
age 15



Swimming Pool

Car Park

Sheppey 
College

Sheppey Leisure 
Complex

Master’s House

P
age 16



Swimming Pool

Car Park

Sheppey 
College

Sheppey Leisure 
Complex

Master’s House

Sheerness High Street

P
age 17



Red line area = Swale Borough Council landholding

P
age 18



Image Gallery – Beachfields

P
age 19



Image Gallery – Beachfields

P
age 20



Image Gallery – Master’s House

P
age 21



Why will this time be different?

• We know plans for the Isle of Sheppey have been discussed lots of time before, and 
some people are fed up of offering their time and ideas without seeing any action

• This time, consultation is being targeted to a specific funding stream

• Whilst there can’t be any promises, Swale is a recognised priority area for the 
Levelling-Up Fund

• We have been given £125,000 to develop Swale’s bid – even if we’re not successful 
with this bid, we will have made progress in developing proposals for other funding 
sources

• Just under 1 in 2 round 1 Levelling-Up Fund bids were successful – these are 
promising odds, and worth working hard for. 

P
age 22



What will the bid include? (1)

• Ideas include the demolition of the ageing swimming pool in its current location and its rebuild next to 
the leisure centre

• This will allow us to invest in new and more environmentally-friendly equipment to run the pool, and 
reduce running costs

• It will also free up land for other attractions at Beachfields

• The existing Leisure Centre will be upgraded, and may include expanded health facilities

• Other attractions could include outdoor 5-a-side football, adventure golf and a bowling alley.

• We plan to replace the paddling pool with a splashpad – all the fun, and improved safety

• We want help to shape what these attractions could be – ideas will need to stack up financially, and we 
can test this as part of the developing the bid. 

P
age 23



What will the bid include? (2)

• EKC Group (who run Sheppey College) are keen to increase the courses they offer on 
the Island

• The council-owned car park next to Sheppey College has more spaces than are 
needed in Sheerness and could be the ideal place for the College to expand

• Master’s House (the former council offices on Trinity Road) is currently undergoing a 
£1.5m refurb. Levelling-Up Fund money could be used to bring the workshop studios 
to the rear back in to use as creative studio workspace. (This is not funded by the 
main works programme) 

• We also want to create better links between these projects and the High Street and 
waterfront. This could be through better signage and public realm improvements. 

P
age 24



Some inspiration…

P
age 25



What might it include?

• We are focussing our consultation on four key areas:
• What would you like to see inside the new swimming pool 

building / refurbished leisure centre?
• What would you like to see in the wider Beachfields footprint?
• The proposed extension of Sheppey College could create new 

courses in engineering and creative industries, and a Junior 
College for 14-16 year olds to study technical and vocational 
subjects. Are there any other industry sectors and types of 
courses that could be considered?

• How do you think the projects can benefit the town centre, 
waterfront, and beyond?

P
age 26



What do we need to consider?

• We would like to achieve a balance of things that people can enjoy everyday, and 
things which will act as a draw for special outings and occasions

• We would like Beachfields to take pride of place at the heart of the community, as 
well as attracting visitors from further afield

• We want (and government will want) wider Sheerness – and beyond - to benefit

• Ideas must stack up financially, and be deliverable by March 2025

• Projects must bring obvious benefits that government can attach a value to

• We need to consider the running costs of attractions and facilities as well as the 
upfront costs. Levelling-Up Fund investment will only fund building work - we can’t 
burden ourselves with large upkeep responsibilities.  

P
age 27



How can I contribute?

• A special meeting of the Sheppey Area Committee is being held 
on Tuesday 8 February from 6.30pm – 8.00pm where plans will be 
presented and views invited

• Everyone is welcome, and you can attend in person or on line

• The meeting will take place at Sheerness East Working Men’s Club 
or via MS Teams 

• If you are attending in person, please be mindful of Covid-19 
safety guidance

• On line consultation will be open from 04 - 25 February 2022

• See details at  https://swale.gov.uk/levelling-up

•

P
age 28



What next?

• Consultation will remain open until 25 
February 2022

• We will regularly update our webpage with 
timescales, progress and further engagement 
opportunities

• Swale Borough Council’s Cabinet will be asked 
to formally endorse the bid in March 2022

• We will ask stakeholders and community 
groups for letters of support to help 
strengthen our case. 

P
age 29



Useful Links and Contact Details

• Government Levelling-Up Fund guidance -
Levelling Up Fund: additional documents 
- GOV.UK (www.gov.uk)

• Swale Borough Council’s webpage - Major 
projects and developments - Sheerness 
Revival (swale.gov.uk)

• Please get in touch via 
sheernessrevival@swale.gov.uk

P
age 30



Thank you 
for your time 
and ideas

P
age 31



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Swale Borough Council's Levelling-Up Fund Bid
	Consultation Pack LUF Final


